
 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 5, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   
 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2)             Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)                   
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA   

 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
b. Minutes for Approval:  January 15, 2013 
c. Municipal Election Agreement with Palms West Presbyterian Church  

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 

Page 1 of 102

 
Page 1 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
3. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Anna Stewart, Manager Drowning Prevention Coalition – Requested by Council Member 
Jarriel 

 
b. F. Martin Perry – presentation re:  PUD (Loxahatchee Groves Town Center)  
 
c.   Joe Lelonek – presentation re:  PUD (Loxahatchee Groves Commons) 
 

  
 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
a. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) Report and Approval of the November 

and December 2012 Financial Reports – Vice Chair Elise Ryan 
 
b. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) appointment – Mayor Browning 

  
 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading) –  
 
 

a. Ordinance No. 2012-12  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” 
SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION FOR 
“RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 20, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, 
ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 80 
(CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING 
DISTRICT; TO AMEND ARTICLE 80, ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO 
ADD A NEW SECTION 80-60, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 

Page 2 of 102

 
Page 2 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



SALES AND SERVICES,” TO PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
 
6. ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  - Continued from December 4, 2012, Town Council Meeting 
 

a. Public Hearing: 
 
  Ordinance No. 2013-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 
COMPENSATION FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS,  SEVERABILITY,  AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
7.   RESOLUTIONS   
 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
  
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
 a. Discussion of Initiative Petition – Requested by Council Member Goltzené  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 102

 
Page 3 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Purchase and Installation of Solar Powered Flashing Red Lights to Add to Stop 
Signs – Requested by Council Member Rockett 

 
b. Manure Ordinance – Requested by Council Member Goltzené 
 
c. Town Council Interest in Purchasing Property 

 
 
  
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   
 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next Town Council Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 5, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

 Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

Page 4 of 102

 
Page 4 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

2.a.  Invoices from  Goren, Cherof, dDoody & Ezrol, P.A. 

Page 5 of 102

 
Page 5 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 6 of 102

 
Page 6 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 7 of 102

 
Page 7 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 8 of 102

 
Page 8 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 9 of 102

 
Page 9 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 10 of 102

 
Page 10 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 11 of 102

 
Page 11 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 12 of 102

 
Page 12 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 13 of 102

 
Page 13 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

2.b.  Minutes for Approval 

Page 14 of 102

 
Page 14 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, January 15, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)   Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2)   Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)   Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)         
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

Councilman Jarriel requested that item 10.a. be moved to follow item 8.   
 
Motion: Council Member Liang made a motion to approve the Agenda, as amended.  
The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Rockett.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion 
was seconded by Council Member Liang.  Town Manager Kutney pointed out that an 
additional invoice had been received today, and it should be included in the approval.  Vice 

Page 15 of 102

 
Page 15 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Mayor Rocket amended his motion to include the invoice in the amount of $612.45 for               
in his motion to approve.  The amended motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  
The motion passed 5/0.   
 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. CAFR Presentation – Darlene Malaney, CIMA, Director, Finance Services, Palm Beach 
County Clerk & Comptroller’s Office 

 
Darlene Malaney, Director of Finance Services with Palm Beach County Clerk & Comptroller’s 
Office  presented the Certificate for Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. 
 
 

b. Certificate of Appreciation for outstanding support for Read for the Record to Mayor 
Browning from the Literacy Coalition of Palm Beach County- Jeanne Heavilin, 
Volunteer &Ourtreach Coordinator. 

 
Jeanne Heavilin, Volunteer & Outreach Coordinator, presented the Certificate of Appreciation 
for Read for the Record to Mayor Browning.  
 
 

c. South FloridaWater Management Presentation – Pam Mac’Kie 
 
Town Manager Kutney advised that Ms. Mac’Kie could not be present for the meeting, and 
would be present at the February 5, 2013, meeting for the presentation at that time. 
 
 

d. Proclamation for Volunteers – Certificates of Appreciation – Mayor Browning 
C & C Loader:  JohnnyChoquette 
Color Garden Farms:  Elise Ryan, 
Weston Nursery:  Jim Rockett  

 
Mayor Browning presented the Certificates of Appreciation to Johnny Choquette, Elise and John 
Ryan, and Jim Rockett, and thanked them for their efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 102

 
Page 16 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
a. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) Report – FAAC Special Meeting held on 

January 9, 2013 – Vice Chair, Elise Ryan 
 
 

Town Manager Kutney advised that the Town Council had indicated that input from the FAAC 
was needed regarding the issue of Town Council compensation, and the meeting had been held 
on January 9, 2013.  Data had been provided to the FAAC, and after their consideration, the 
recommendation had been for Option 2 of the data presented - a $500 month allowance per 
council member 
 
Vice Chair Elise Ryan addressed the Town Council, and summarized the discussion that had 
taken place at the FAAC meeting on January 9, 2013, reporting that the FAAC recommendation 
had been for a $500 per month allowance per council member. 
 
Comments from the Town Council: 
 
Discussion took place regarding compensation of $100 per meeting; $250 per council 
member per month; $500 per council member per month; a 12 month basis of 
compensation, with evaluation at the end of that time.  
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve compensation in the amount 
of $250 per council person per month for an annual max of $15,000 for the entire Town 
Council – and proceed only for 12 months to see how it goes, and then take another look at 
it next year.  The motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Motion: Council Member Jarriel made a motion to approve compensation of $500 per 
month per council member, as recommended by the FAAC, with a re-evaluation taking 
place at the end of 12 months.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  
 
Further discussion took place. 
 
The motion passed 3/2, with Mayor Browning and Vice Mayor Rockett opposed. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that the vote tonight was 3/2, and the directive would need to come 
back as an ordinance, when four votes would be needed to authorize the compensation.   Any 
ordinance that was passed could not take effect until the next following election.   
 

Page 17 of 102

 
Page 17 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



It was the consensus of the Town Council that the ordinance would be prepared for first 
reading at the next Town Council meeting. 
 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading)– 
 
 

a. Ordinance  No. 2012-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO ELECTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR VACANCY IN CANDIDACY PROCEDURES; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance No. 2012-13 by title, as printed above. 
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Rockett  made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2012-13.  The motion 
was seconded by Council Member Liang.   
 
Mayor Browning opened the public hearing. 
 
There was no one desiring to speak 
 
Mayor Browning closed the public hearing. 
 
The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
 
 
6. ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  - Continued from December 4, 2012, Town Council Meeting 
 

a. Public Hearing: 
 
 

Ordinance No. 2012-12 

Page 18 of 102

 
Page 18 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” 
SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION 
FOR “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 20, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 
20-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE SUBJECT 
TO ARTICLE 80 (CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; TO AMEND ARTICLE 80, 
ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO ADD A NEW SECTION 80-60, 
ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES,” TO 
PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND 
SERVICES USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING 
DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo read ordinance no. 2012-12 by title, as printed above. 
 

Public Hearing: 
 

Town Manager Kutney noted that this was continued from December 4, 2012, so that more 
information could be gathered by Councilman Goltzené.  This ordinance was the original 
ordinance that was presented on December 4, 2012, and the changes made did not change the 
title.   
 
Town Planning Consultant Fleischmann reported that the proposed ordinance was received by the 
Planning & Zoning Board on November 8, 2012, and they recommended approval.  The 
ordinance was presented at the December 4, 2012, Town Council meeting, and at that time 
Councilman Goltzené requested that additional time was needed to review the language of the 
ordinance.  Staff met with Councilman Goltzené last week to discuss his particular concerns.   
The changes made were highlighted in yellow.  The underlined sections were sections that were 
added and strike through sections represented those sections that would be deleted.  The Council 
could decide to approve the unedited edition of the ordinance, or alternatively it could decide to 
approve the ordinance with some or all of the changes.   

Page 19 of 102

 
Page 19 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
Mr. Fleischman presented a brief power point with the history and key components of the 
ordinance. 
 
Motion: The following motions were made in regard to Ordinance No. 2012-12: 
 
Councilman Goltzené made a motion to strike the provision regarding special exception for 
semi-trucks making deliveries.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  The 
motion passed 5/0. 
 
Councilman Goltzené made a motion to strike the provision regarding limiting the number 
of employees to two.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  The motion passed 
5/0. 
 
Councilman Goltzené made a motion that the hours of operation are 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
five days a week, and on Saturday; Sunday hours 12:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mr. Fleischmann explained that the changes on pages 45-58 related to ownership of the property 
and the business.  Council Member Goltzené suggested that the owner of the business would not 
necessarily have to be the owner of the property.  After discussion, it was determined that the 
language relating to ownership of the property would remain. 
 
Motion: Councilman Jarriel made a motion to adopt Ordinance No.  2012-12 on first 
reading, incorporating the changes made.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor 
Rockett.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 “E” Road:  Commented regarding handling all of the mom and pop 
organizations that existed prior to incorporation at one time.  
 
Todd McLendon, 3481 “D” Road:  Commented regarding clarification as to accessory use as 
opposed to primary use.  Town Planning Consultant Fleischmann advised that the principal use 
had to be a residence; the only criteria in the code was that an accessory use had to be smaller 
physically on the property than the primary use. 
 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr:  Commented that she agreed with Howard Voren and 
noted that the Red Bard opens at 10 am on Sun. 

Page 20 of 102

 
Page 20 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
The motion passed 3/2, with Council Member Goltzené and Mayor Browning opposed. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that the Charter required approval of four Town Council 
members on second reading of the ordinance. 
 
 
7.   RESOLUTIONS   
 
  
 a. Resolution 2013-01 Establishing Zoning Fees 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING AND 
ESTABLISHING CERTAIN ZONING REVIEW FEES; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Manager Kutney advised that the Town Council had asked the Management Company to 
try to recoup costs.  He explained the basis of the fees included in the Resolution. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read Resolution No. 2013-01 by title as printed above. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve Resolution 2013-01.  The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
Town Manager Kutney advised that another Petition for Initiative, with a page included that 
referred to a charter amendment, was received on January 7, 2013.        . 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that this is the same question that was the subject of the initial 
petition that was filed in November.  It raises the same legal concerns that were outlined earlier.  
Palm Beach State College is aware of this petition and they had sent a letter outlining their 
concerns about the original petition.  Nothing is different today than when we met in November, 
other than the resolution of support.  I will update and mention that the core issue has to be with 
the substance, and whether it is appropriate under state law for a referendum issue.  There has 
been a circuit court opinion that permitted a referendum on an issue similar to this.  The city of 

Page 21 of 102

 
Page 21 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Boca Raton has filed an appeal and there is a decision pending in the Appellate Court.  Any 
decision in that case would be binding on the Town. The Charter contains a time frame for 
signatures, and from the Town’s perspective, the Committee is in that time frame to collect the 
signatures.   
 
Council Member Jarriel read a letter from Patrick Kavanaugh, 15060 25th Place North, regarding 
an incident relative to the initiative petition issue, into the record.  
 
Town Manger Kutney continued with his administrative update.  He referred to the workshop 
that was held recently regarding the moratorium effort and Okeechobee Blvd, and noted that a 
second workshop would be held with the property owners along Southern Blvd., as well as the 
general public, in order to receive input as it related to the moratorium effort. 
   
Public Comment: 
 
Marshal Newell, 3508 “C” Road:  Commented regarding the petition, and that it was asking that 
the people of Loxahatchee Groves can vote on whether they want the college or not, and that no 
one would be forced to sign.   
 
Vice Mayor Rockett commented that it is unfair that more of the story is not included – the 
people have to know what they are voting for. 
 
Town Manager Kutney continued with his administrative update, and announced that State 
Representative Pafford would hold a Town Hall Meeting on January 31, 2013, at the Village of 
Royal Palm Beach Cultural Center, 151 Civic Center Way, Royal Palm Beach, Florida. 
 
Town Manager Kutney continued with his administrative update, and advised that Lee Wright, 
727 “E” Road,  had indicated that he had an interest in selling the property, 15.3 acres, to the 
Town.  Mr. Kutney stated that he had indicated that the process would be to bring it to the Town 
Council to see if there was any interest.  
 
Council Member Goltzené recused himself if there was discussion in regard to that matter due to 
business matters with Mr. Wright.   
 
Town Manager Kutney reminded the Town Council that Council Member Liang needed to 
appoint a member to the Unified Land Development Code Review Committee.  Council had 
indicated that it would provide the staff with specific sections that they would like to look at.  An 
introductory meeting date was planned in January, and Mr. Kutney would receive input from the 
Town Council at any time prior to that time.  He indicated that the Committee would first try to 
correct all of the problems that have been identified, or that may be encountered as the review 

Page 22 of 102

 
Page 22 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



took place, and secondly, the Committee would find the nebulous, in appropriate and over-
regulatory matters that the Town Council would want the Committee to review.  It was the 
consensus of the Town Council that was the process that would be followed.  
 
Town Manager Kutney provided an update on code enforcement policies and upcoming matters 
that would be heard at the Special Magistrate hearing.   
 
 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
a. Ryan Liang appointment to ULDC Committee 
 
Council Member Liang appointed Katie Davis to the Unified Land Development Code Review 
Committee. 
 
b.  Code Enforcement Policy – Town of Loxahatchee Groves  
 
Town Manager Kutney reviewed the code enforcement policy that was discussed at the last 
Town Council meeting, noting that code enforcement complaints will still be handled on a 
complaint basis, and that the Town Manager is authorized to commence proactive code 
enforcement without a written complaint in cases where code enforcement violations are 
observed in Commercial Zoning districts within the Town.  The Town Manager is also 
authorized to initiate code enforcement efforts upon direction from the Town Council during a 
Town Council meeting when a violation may cause irreparable harm or is deemed to be 
egregious in nature.  Illegal manure dumping complaints are also handled proactively pursuant to 
Ordinance 2012-03. 
 
Martin McKabe,  “C” Road (Southwest corner Okeechobee and “D”):  Commented that he was 
looking to make mulch for sale; to do chipping and mulching as an accessory use; he could meet 
all requirements except the 5 acre requirement.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo clarified that the issue is how do you establish a mulching process. 
 
Town Manager Kutney replied that the code requires 10 acres; it is a conditional use approval.  
He did not know that Mr. McCabe was even operating, until Councilman Jarriel brought it to our 
attention, and it was then found that it was in violation.   
 
Mayor Browning commented that this is something we are going to be dealing with in the ULDC 
review. 

Page 23 of 102

 
Page 23 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
Motion:  Council Member Goltzené made a motion to approve the policy as set forth by 
Town Manager Kutney.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Rockett.  The motion 
passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Browning explained that Mr. McCabe should meet with Town Manager Kutney and go 
through the process.   
 
Council Member Jarriel commented that the application was applied back in July of 2012.  Here 
it is January, and we still have not solved the problem. 
 
   
c. Paying yearly debt assessment for OGEM roads that are finished – Ron Jarriel 
 
 1. Town to pay for rest of lettered roads to be OGEMed with approval of residents – 

Ron Jarriel 
 
2. Town to pay for the resurfacing of Bryan Road, Compton Road and Marcella 

Blvd.  Estimate needed from local contractors now – Ron Jarriel 
 
 3. Town to purchase property at 3995 “A” Road for future equestrian, bike and 

hiking trails – Ron Jarriel 
 
 4. Get an estimate from local contractors on cleaning out Compton Road drainage 

ditch on north side – Ron Jarriel 
 
 5. Establish interlocal agreement with LGWCD for hedging Town Road 

easements/right-of-ways – Ron Jarriel 
 
Discussion took place regarding reviewing all of the Town funds to determine what dollars were 
committed and what could be available to be spent on roads. Vice Mayor Rocket exhibited a 
document put together by staff that reviewed all of the funds available and what was committed 
so far.  Discussion took place regarding the Intergovernmental Committee meetings, and various 
roads in the Town that needed work. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that he understood the frustration; relative to the Intergovernmental 
Committee, he had indicated to the Town Council that we are ready to go once we get the 
administrator for the LGWCD.  He offered that he could meet with one of the supervisors if the 
Town Council so directed.  He noted that the Management Company has been working 

Page 24 of 102

 
Page 24 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



diligently, and would issue an invitation to bid regarding the roadway work.  He hoped to have 
the engineering RFP done at the end of January.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained that the moratorium would expire at the end of March.  
Proposals will be brought before the Town Council in March, and that was a very compressed 
time frame; there was litigation in federal court as well.  Both items were deadline driven.   
 
Vice Mayor Rockett recommended that the RFP for engineering services be accomplished.  He 
noted that the whole discussion about what the District could be asked to do, and what role they 
would have was a very long and complex discussion 
 
Motion: Councilman Jarriel made a motion to approve establishing an 
Intergovernmental Committee again, and do it now and make a meeting as soon as possible 
as long as the Town Manager is available, and I would like to be at that first meeting, and I 
am sure that John Ryan can be on the other. 
 
The motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
 
Public Comments: 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 “E” Road:   Commented regarding the joint meeting with the LGWCD and 
discussion regarding the LGWCD turning over the road easements,  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo clarified that the motion made included the letter roads, plus Compton 
and Marcella and Bryan. 
 
Motion: Council Member Jarriel made a motion that action be taken on all of the 
Ogemed roads, the district roads, and Bryan, Compton and Marcella. The motion was 
seconded by Council Member Liang.   
 
John Ryan,        A Road stated:  There are no public easements recorded for Bryan Road.  On 
Compton and Marcella; the District does not have ownership of an easement right.  The county 
named us as a grantee on behalf of the public, and we have instructed our counsel to work with 
the Town Attorney to find out what kind of transfer we can make to the Town that has sufficient 
validity for the Town to take responsibility of those roads.  We think that in July 2014, the Town 
may be able to qualify under a Florida Statute to actually take responsibility of the roads.  There 
is no hesitancy on the part of the District to turn over whatever our interest is, but we don’t really 
know what our interest is.  
 

Page 25 of 102

 
Page 25 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



The motion passed 5/0. 
 
Marsha Newell, 3508 C Road:  Commented regarding the committee, and that who is on the 
committee should be decided by the Town Council. 
 
Marianne Miles;  3413 B Road:  Commented that she had handed in a packet in regard to the 
roads that she would like the Town Council to review, and that the facts and figures she had put 
together took a lot of time and energy.   
 
Harold Murphy:  13245 Compton Road:  Commented that Compton Road was dangerous and 
needed to be fixed; drainage was also blocked.  
 
Virginia Standish:  15410 North Road:  Commented with feedback as to why some residents 
voted no for OGEM on their roads; the transfer of easements from LGWCD to the Town, and the 
legal consequences thereof.  
 
  
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Charter and Ethics Code Violations  -Ron Jarriel [Clerk’s note:  item 10.a. was heard 

immediately following Item 8.] 
 
Councilman Jarriel commented that he believed that the Town has the best management team 
that money could buy, and that he supported them and thought they did an outstanding job.  He 
referred to a letter to him from the Town Manager regarding the work done on 6th Court North, 
and the Town’s ethical code, as well as a letter from the Town Manager to the Loxahatchee 
Groves Water Control District on the same issue.  Mr. Jarriel proceeded to read the letters into 
the record, and then provided his comments.  He noted that he had gone to the Palm Beach 
County Commission on Ethics, and that it was the opinion that there was not anything unethical 
done on his part.  He requested that the Town Council let him know if the Town Manager was 
justified in writing the letter. 
 
Discussion took placed between the Town Council members. 
 
Council Member Jarriel stated that the Town Manager should have handled the situation with 
him, and that he did not see anything wrong with his actions in regard to the road work that 
would save money for the Town.  Any questions should have been clarified at the meeting at 
which the issue occurred.  He stated that he had contacted the Town legal staff and asked that the 
letter be read over and that he is told whether the action was unethical. 

Page 26 of 102

 
Page 26 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that he does not give opinions on whether someone acts 
unethically.  The ultimate conclusion is for the Town Council, because it is their charter and their 
code.  He does not investigate these matters.  The Town Manager felt that there was an issue and 
he put it in this format, and now it is before the Council.  He stated that Mr. Jarriel was the judge 
of his own conduct under the charter and the code, and at this point, the Council has to decide 
whether to take any action and what that action would be. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that he felt compelled to address the other side of the issue:  The 
Management Company enjoys working with the Town Council, and Ron is a fine man and I like 
him and all of you very much.  There have been numerous attempts by myself and Bill 
Underwood to try to counsel Ron that the direction he is going affects not only him, but the 
entire Town Council.  We work out of a Town Council majority, and to have an individual 
council member doing things that could affect the entire Town Council is a dangerous situation.  
We understand ethics law and what you have to do.  I never intended to put Ron in this position.  
I don’t have the authority to file ethics charges.  Mike is correct, you all are the judge.  All I can 
do is suggest when I think behavior is getting out of hand.  I have made attempts to meet with 
Ron, and did meet with him, and I felt that the only way we could get his attention was to put it 
in writing.  He insisted that this be put on the agenda.  He spent a lot of time talking about my 
letter to the LGWCD.  Ron cannot have it both ways – as a resident, and as a council member.  
My concern to them was that I was speaking on behalf of the Town as your authorized 
representative.  The issue is this:  before we even got into that situation, earlier that evening Ron 
got up and made a comment that the Town had $4 million and that the resident should come and 
talk to us.  Bill and I have told Ron that you cannot do that, and you are putting yourself and the 
Council in harm’s way.  The road issue is now being confused.  The question was one of 
interference and violating ethics.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
Dominic Pologruto, 12918 Marcella Blvd.:  Mayor Browning read his comments of support for 
Council Member Jarriel into the record on request. 
 
Jeff Smith, 3410 “A” Road:  Mayor Browning read his comments of support for Council 
Member Jarriel into the record on request. 
 
Don Widing, 13169 Marcella Blvd.:  Commented regarding the correspondence between Town 
Manager Kutney and Council Member Jarriel and the LGWCD.   
 
Todd McLendon,  3481 “D” Road:  Commented regarding the issue concerning Council Member 
Jarriel. 

Page 27 of 102

 
Page 27 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



  
Gerald Eickes, 3481 B Road:  Commented that Vinceremos is a great organization, and if that is 
all it took to keep the support there, I don’t have a problem with cutting those trees. 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett stated that Council Member Jarriel is asking the Town Council what it 
thinks.  I think he gets over-zealous sometimes, but that’s it. 
 
Council Member Liang stated:  I support Ron and what he is doing.  I think the question is why 
did he feel he needed to go directly to the District.  Ron at times feels he needs to take things into 
his own hands and get it done – government moves too slowly.  We do need to follow our own 
guidelines.  Mark, I would have liked to have had some notice or been talked to before we got 
this letter sent to the District, just to feel how the rest of the Council wants to handle the 
situation.  This could have been handled better, but now let’s get past it and move on. 
 
Council Member Goltzené stated:  My thoughts are that our function as a Town Council is to 
make policy, set rules, make regulations, etc., and in doing that, we ought to realize that these 
ordinances are for everyone, including ourselves, and the ethics ordinance should be followed 
and policy should be followed.  If the goal is to have a town manager form of government, Ron 
needs to understand that his role in this situation is one of five and one who is to vote on issues 
and give direction to the management, and then allow them to do the work.  There are rules, 
regulations and laws and great complexity in the rules we live by in the 21st century.  We are a 
government, and when we make rules the rules need to be followed.  Ron should give Mark the 
respect to get the job done.  I don’t believe that there are people in this town who want us to 
borrow money or raise taxes.  How does he stretch the $4 million and pay for $9-12 million 
worth of roads.  I do not want to punish Ron, and this entire procedure is at his desire.  If he 
wants to get someone to investigate this, that is his decision. 
 
 
  
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
Robin Shehan and Henry Noyes, 14345 Tripp Road North:  Commented regarding a  
problem with a neighbor and a motor cross track, and that the noise could not be tolerated 
and something needed to be done. 

 
Todd McLendon, 3481 “D” Road:  Commented regarding the initiative petition and that the 
petition is to give the people a voice to tell the Town Council what they want. 
  

Page 28 of 102

 
Page 28 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Marianne Miles: 3412 “E” Road:  Commented that if the people that are signing the petition 
for the college wanted to take a vote to have it done, they should have done it a while ago 
before the property was purchased.  If they don’t want it, they should get together and buy 
the property from the college, so that it doesn’t cost the taxpayers money for an ongoing 
process for getting this resolved.  She commented regarding people riding horses on the road, 
and commented regarding the packet she had handed in regarding the roadways. 
 

 
 
b. Town Attorney 

  
 

c. Town Council Members 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett requested that, if the Town Council agreed, Town Attorney Cirullo could 
advise the Town Council on a monthly basis how often meetings are set up with the LGWCD 
attorney, when the meets are held and what was discussed.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that a meeting had been held in early December when the 
District was trying to figure out how to get an administrator,  there had not been any hesitancy on 
the part of the LGWCD attorney, and he would be happy to provide updates in any form that the 
Town Council desired.  He offered that he could give a verbal update, or a brief bullet report 
under his report once a month on the status of road transfer issues with the District. 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett stated the he would want to see something once a month if possible. 
 
After discussion, it was the consensus of the Town council that Town Attorney Cirullo 
provide a report once a month. 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett:   Regarding the initiative petition, stating that it was not simply the right 
to vote, and that people need to be told the end result that they will be part and party to,  if they 
sign the petition and a vote is taken, and the intent is to have the Council undo what they have 
approved.  They always have the right to sign, but they should know the consequences of 
signing.   
 
Council Member Liang:  Goodnight. 
 
Council Member Jarriel:  Thanked everyone.  Apologize for his part in making it this late.  I 
am glad that Jim Rockett and Mayor Browning are running for re-election. 
 

Page 29 of 102

 
Page 29 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Mayor:  Thanked everyone for coming.  Added one thing – maybe what we need to do is change 
our charter to let everyone vote for every land change in Loxahatchee Groves.  America does not 
have a pure democracy.  It is a republic and you elect people to make decisions, and we make 
decisions with the best input that we can get and come up with a conclusion.   
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Town Council meeting of January 15, 2013, was adjourned 
at 11:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan Eichhorn     David Browning 
Town Clerk      Mayor 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 

 
These minutes were approved by the Town Council at the 

February 5. 2013, Town Council Meeting 

Page 30 of 102

 
Page 30 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

2.c.  Municipal Election Agreement with Palms West Presbyterian Church 

Page 31 of 102

 
Page 31 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 32 of 102

 
Page 32 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 33 of 102

 
Page 33 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

3.a.  Drowning Coalition Information 

Page 34 of 102

 
Page 34 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 35 of 102

 
Page 35 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 36 of 102

 
Page 36 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

4.a.  FAAC Report and Approval of the November and December 2012 Financial Reports 

Page 37 of 102

 
Page 37 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 249,245        19,630           7.9%
SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,326        9,123             7.8%
CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                   -                     

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE -                   -                     
Total Revenues 366,571       28,753           7.8%
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 9,245            -                 0.0%
NON-DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 40,000          9,290              23.2%
DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. -                   -                 
ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) 150,000        -                 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) 50,000          0
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                   
CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                   

TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE 117,326 0
Total Expenses 366,571       9,290             2.5%
Excess(deficiency) -                   19,463           
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 346,361        17,879            5.2%
DISCOUNT FEES (10,392)         (819)                7.9%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 8,000            3,652              45.7%
AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 206,025         12,130           5.9% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 126,000        -                 
ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          202,000         41,353           20.5% Total Revenues 469,969        20,713            4.4%
COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    136,726         10,709           7.8%
COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000             3,068             61.4% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          12,000          1,234              10.3%
FPL FRANCHISE FEE 206,000         19,687           9.6% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 3,463            170.61            4.9%
HAULER LICENSE FEE 2,000             -                    0.0% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 500 -                 
PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 10,500           799               7.6% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 451,634        75,272            16.7%
PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 30,000           -                    0.0% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 1,500            -                     0.0%
STATE REVENUE SHARING 77,873           6,384             8.2%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             872               -                     0.0%
HALF CENT SALES TAX 212,024         16,262           7.7% MANAGEMENT FEES -                   -                     
GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 5,000             1,180             23.6% Total Expenses 469,969        76,677            16.3%
COST RECOVERY FEES 20,000           6,026             30.1% Excess(deficiency) (55,964)           
COURT FINES -                    478               Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 5,000             300               6% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 400,000       -                     
INTEREST 3,600             25                 0.7% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 912,466       -                     

OTHER MISC. INCOME 5,000             -                    0 Total Revenues 1,312,466   -                     0.0%
TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* 400,000         -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 1,526,748     118,400         7.8% DEVELOP TOWN HALL ALTERNATIVES 500,000       -                     -                 
TRAILS 200,000       -                     -                 

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM PAVING/COST SHARING -                   -                     
LEGISLATIVE       39,235           3,806             9.7% ROAD & DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT 362,466       -                     -                 
EXECUTIVE 275,259         45,279           16.4% TRAFFIC LIGHT OKEECHOBEE 250,000       -                     -                 
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 23,750           910               3.8% -                 
LEGAL COUNSEL 60,000           18,197           30.3% Total Expenses 1,312,466     -                     0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 148,700         24,330           16.4% Excess(deficiency) -                     
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 695,519         21,632           3.1% Contract Services Expenditures
LAW ENFORCEMENT 275,285         45,798           16.6% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %
PUBLIC WORKS 9,000             186               2.1% Waste Pro 451,634        75,272.40       16.7%

Total Expenditures 1,526,748      160,137         10.5% Palm Beach County Sheriff 275,285        45,797.50       16.6%

Excess(deficiency) -                        (41,737)         Underwood Management Services Group 330,835        55,524.25       16.8%
Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol 60,000          18,659.65       31.1%
Tew & Associates 35,000          5,018.50         14.3%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Land Research Management 5,585.50         
Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Calvin Giodorno -                     
Total Townwide Budget 3,675,754      246,104         6.7% Frank Schiola 25,000          2,630.50         10.5%

YEE's Corporation 10,800          1,800.00         16.7%
Loxahatchee Water Control District 150000 -                     

Total Expenses 1,338,554       210,288.30      

( 17% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of November 30, 2012

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

AD VALOREM 
TAXESFPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX

STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX

PBC\OCC BUS TAX
GEN GOVT 
CHARGES

COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC 
FINES

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES

INTEREST

OTH MISC 
INCOME

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND

 -  200,000  400,000  600,000  800,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
FPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX
PBC\OCC BUS TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC FINES
PLAN ZON PERMIT…

INTEREST
OTH MISC INCOME

TRANS FR SANI FUND
TRANS FR FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue

Budget YTD

2012-11 FinActRep

Page 38 of 102

 
Page 38 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



17% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 12,130.38            12,130.38         -                      206,025.00            (193,894.62)              5.9%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 12,130.38          12,130.38       206,025.00          (193,894.62)            

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 24,011.34            41,352.99         -                      202,000.00            (160,647.01)              20.5%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 10,708.79            10,708.79         -                      136,726.00            (126,017.21)              7.8%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 757.89                 3,067.65           -                      5,000.00                (1,932.35)                 61.4%

Local Taxes Subtotal 35,478.02          55,129.43       -                     343,726.00          (288,596.57)            

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 19,686.54            19,686.54         -                      206,000.00            (186,313.46)              9.6%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       -                   -                      2,000.00                (2,000.00)                 0.0%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 789.48                 798.73             -                      10,500.00              (9,701.27)                 7.6%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit -                       -                   -                      30,000.00              (30,000.00)               0.0%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 20,476.02          20,485.27       -                     248,500.00          (228,014.73)            

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,383.62              6,383.62           -                      77,873.00              (71,489.38)               8.2%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 16,262.29            16,262.29         -                      212,024.00            (195,761.71)              7.7%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 22,645.91          22,645.91       289,897.00          (267,251.09)            7.8%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 550.00                 1,180.00           -                      5,000.00                (3,820.00)                 23.6%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 1,587.50              6,026.25           -                      20,000.00              (13,973.75)               30.1%

Charges for Services Subtotal 2,137.50            7,206.25         -                     25,000.00            (17,793.75)             

001-351-100-000 Court Fines 261.80               477.74           -                     -                       477.74                    
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       300.00             -                      5,000.00                (4,700.00)                 6.0%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal 261.80               777.74           -                     5,000.00              (4,222.26)               

001-361-100-000 Interest 13.06                   25.13               -                      3,600.00                (3,574.87)                 #N/A
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       -                   -                      5,000.00                (5,000.00)                 0.0%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 13.06                 25.13             -                     8,600.00              (8,574.87)               

001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            (400,000.00)              0.0%
Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                 400,000.00          (400,000.00)            

Grand Total Revenue 93,142.69          118,400.11     -                     1,526,748.00       (1,408,347.89)         7.8%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2012

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 1 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 39 of 102

 
Page 39 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



17% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                   -                      20,000.00              20,000.00                 0.0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       92.00               -                      3,000.00                2,908.00                   3.1%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       -                   -                      1,500.00                1,500.00                   0.0%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                   -                      1,000.00                1,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       -                   -                      300.00                   300.00                      0.0%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                   -                      300.00                   300.00                      0.0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions 1,270.00              3,714.00           -                      7,785.00                4,071.00                   47.7%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions -                       -                   -                      5,350.00                5,350.00                   0.0%

Legislative Total 1,270.00            3,806.00         -                     39,235.00            35,429.00               9.7%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 21,367.82            42,735.64         -                      254,635.00            211,899.36               16.8%
001-512-400-000 Travel 58.07                   118.90             -                      1,000.00                881.10                      11.9%
001-512-410-000 Communication Services -                       476.26             -                      -                         (476.26)                    -
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 47.70                   47.70               -                      1,000.00                952.30                      4.8%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 5.00                     10.00               -                      944.00                   934.00                      1.1%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense -                       -                   -                      8,010.00                8,010.00                   0.0%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 551.85                 740.40             -                      8,600.00                7,859.60                   8.6%
001-512-521-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT - MOVED -                       1,149.67           -                      -                         (1,149.67)                 -
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       -                   -                      570.00                   570.00                      0.0%

Executive Total 22,030.44          45,278.57       275,259.00          229,980.43             16.4%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       -                   -                      18,000.00              18,000.00                 0.0%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      4,750.00                4,750.00                   0.0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising 910.00                 910.00             -                      1,000.00                90.00                        91.0%
001-513-493-000 Election Expense (moved) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Financial & Administrative Total 910.00               910.00           23,750.00            22,840.00               3.8%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 9,629.15              18,197.25         -                      60,000.00              41,802.75                 30.3%
Legal Total 9,629.15            18,197.25       60,000.00            41,802.75               32.6%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 2 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 40 of 102

 
Page 40 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



17% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 10,974.43            18,303.86         -                      40,000.00              21,696.14                 45.8%
001-515-340-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      76,200.00              76,200.00                 0.0%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-515-347-000 Comprehensive Plan -                       -                   -                      5,000.00                5,000.00                   0.0%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 1,587.50              6,026.25           -                      25,000.00              18,973.75                 24.1%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW -                       -                   -                      2,500.00                2,500.00                   0.0%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 12,561.93          24,330.11       148,700.00          124,369.89             16.4%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 1,125.00              1,755.00           -                      16,000.00              14,245.00                 11.0%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 2,096.50              3,339.00           -                      41,000.00              37,661.00                 8.1%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 467.66                 467.66             -                      5,100.00                4,632.34                   9.2%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 2,136.17              2,377.40           -                      16,305.00              13,927.60                 14.6%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       12,316.00         -                      16,500.00              4,184.00                   74.6%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 200.00                 400.00             -                      2,126.00                1,726.00                   18.8%
001-519-470-000 Printing and Binding 471.18                 471.18             -                      -                         (471.18)                    0.0%
001-519-480-000 Promotional Activities -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 176.75                 505.80             -                      4,500.00                3,994.20                   11.2%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services -                       -                   -                      11,131.00              11,131.00                 0.0%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                      5,280.00                5,280.00                   0.0%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       -                   -                      2,000.00                2,000.00                   0.0%
001-519-900-000 Transfer toTransportation Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-519-910-000 Transfer to Sanitation Fund -                       -                   -                      126,000.00            126,000.00               0.0%
001-519-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            400,000.00               0.0%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                      49,577.00              49,577.00                 0.0%

Other Governmental Services Total 6,673.26            21,632.04       695,519.00          673,886.96             3.1%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 22,898.75            45,797.50         -                      274,785.00            228,987.50               16.7%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%

Law Enforcement Total 22,898.75          45,797.50       275,285.00          229,487.50             16.6%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-539-340-000 Professional Services 185.50                 185.50             -                      9,000.00                8,814.50                   2.1%

Public Works Total 185.50               185.50           9,000.00              8,814.50                 2.1%

Grand Total Expenditure 76,159.03          160,136.97     -                     1,526,748.00       1,366,611.03          10.5%

Net Revenue 16,983.66          (41,736.86)     -                       

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2012

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 3 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 41 of 102

 
Page 41 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



17% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax 19,629.77            19,629.77         -                      249,245.00            (229,615.23)              7.9%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax 9,122.75              9,122.75           -                      117,326.00            (108,203.25)              7.8%
101-363-990-000 Contribution from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Total Revenue 28,752.52          28,752.52       366,571.00          7.8%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                      9,245.00                9,245.00                   0.0%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 8,609.80              9,289.80           -                      40,000.00              30,710.20                 23.2%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-631-000 Road and Streets (5 cent) -                       -                   -                      150,000.00            150,000.00               0.0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                      50,000.00              50,000.00                 0.0%
101-541-634-000 148th Terr Bridge (5)/Culvert -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-636-000 Construct Town Rds & Sts -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      117,326.00            117,326.00               0.0%

Total Expenditure 8,609.80            9,289.80         -                     366,571.00          2.5%

Net Revenue 20,142.72          19,462.72       -                       -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2012

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 4 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 42 of 102

 
Page 42 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



17% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            (400,000.00)              0.0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      912,466.00            (912,466.00)              0.0%

Total Revenue -                     -                 -                     1,312,466.00       (1,312,466.00)         0.0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-519-600-000 Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                       -                   -                      500,000.00            500,000.00               0.0%
305-541-341-000 Trails (changed from Linear Park/Grant Match) -                       -                   -                      200,000.00            200,000.00               0.0%
305-541-346-000 OGEM Paving/Cost Sharing -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
305-541-434-000 Road & Drainage Improvement -                       -                   -                      362,466.00            362,466.00               0.0%
305-541-436-000 Traffic Light Okeechobee -                       -                   -                      250,000.00            250,000.00               0.0%

Total Expenditure -                     -                 -                     1,312,466.00       1,312,466.00          0.0%

Net Revenue -                     -                 -                       -                         

Capital Improvement Program

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2012

Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 5 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 43 of 102

 
Page 43 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



17% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-323-125-000 Haulers Licensing Fee - MOVED TO GF -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 17,879.42            17,879.42         -                      346,361.00            (328,481.58)              5.2%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees (818.86)                (818.86)            -                      (10,392.00)             9,573.14                   7.9%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income 2,618.74              3,652.09           -                      8,000.00                (4,347.91)                 45.7%
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      126,000.00            (126,000.00)              0.0%

Total Revenue 19,679.30          20,712.65       -                     469,969.00          (449,256.35)            4.4%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 159.00                 1,234.00           -                      12,000.00              10,766.00                 10.3%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 170.61                 170.61             -                      3,463.00                3,292.39                   4.9%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 37,636.20            75,272.40         -                      451,634.00            376,361.60               16.7%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       -                   -                      1,500.00                1,500.00                   0.0%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      872.00                   872.00                      0.0%
405-534-595-000 TOLG Management Fee -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Total Expenditure 37,965.81          76,677.01       -                     469,969.00          393,291.99             16.3%

Net Revenue (18,286.51)         (55,964.36)     -                       

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2012

UMSG,LLC
Page 6 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 44 of 102

 
Page 44 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 249,245        39,654           15.9%
SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,326        18,613           15.9%
CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                   -                     

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE -                   -                     
Total Revenues 366,571       58,266           15.9%
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 9,245            -                 0.0%
NON-DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 40,000          10,193            25.5%
DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. -                   -                 
ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) 150,000        -                 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) 50,000          0
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                   -                 
CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                   -                 

TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE 117,326 0
Total Expenses 366,571       10,193           2.8%
Excess(deficiency) -                   48,074           
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 346,361        194,020          56.0%
DISCOUNT FEES (10,392)         (7,870)             75.7%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 8,000            3,652              45.7%
AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 206,025         117,729         57.1% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 126,000        -                 
ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          202,000         58,051           28.7% Total Revenues 469,969        189,801          40.4%
COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    136,726         21,708           15.9%
COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000             3,162             63.2% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          12,000          2,029              16.9%
FPL FRANCHISE FEE 206,000         36,528           17.7% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 3,463            1,861.49         53.8%
HAULER LICENSE FEE 2,000             -                    0.0% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 500 -                 
PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 10,500           1,742             16.6% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 451,634        112,909          25.0%
PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 30,000           76                 0.3% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 1,500            -                     0.0%
STATE REVENUE SHARING 77,873           12,767           16.4%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             872               -                     0.0%
HALF CENT SALES TAX 212,024         33,046           15.6% MANAGEMENT FEES -                   -                     
GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 5,000             2,390             47.8% Total Expenses 469,969        116,799          24.9%
COST RECOVERY FEES 20,000           11,577           57.9% Excess(deficiency) 73,002            
COURT FINES -                    563               Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
CODE ENFORCEMENT FINDS 5,000             300               6% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 400,000       -                     
INTEREST 3,600             37                 1.0% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 912,466       -                     

OTHER MISC. INCOME 5,000             -                    0 Total Revenues 1,312,466   -                     0.0%
TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* 400,000         -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 1,526,748     299,676         19.6% DEVELOP TOWN HALL ALTERNATIVES 500,000       -                     -                 
TRAILS 200,000       -                     -                 

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM PAVING/COST SHARING -                   -                     
LEGISLATIVE       39,235           6,031             15.4% ROAD & DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT 362,466       -                     -                 
EXECUTIVE 275,259         67,224           24.4% TRAFFIC LIGHT OKEECHOBEE 250,000       -                     -                 
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 23,750           910               3.8% -                 
LEGAL COUNSEL 60,000           26,085           43.5% Total Expenses 1,312,466     -                     0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 148,700         39,935           26.9% Excess(deficiency) -                     
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 695,519         27,001           3.9% Contract Services Expenditures
LAW ENFORCEMENT 275,285         68,696           25.0% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %
PUBLIC WORKS 9,000             357               4.0% Waste Pro 451,634        112,908.60      25.0%

Total Expenditures 1,526,748      236,239         15.5% Palm Beach County Sheriff 275,285        68,696.25       25.0%

Excess(deficiency) -                        63,437           Underwood Management Services Group 330,835        82,659.45       25.0%
Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol 60,000          26,547.00       44.2%
Tew & Associates 35,000          7,021.00         20.1%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Land Research Management 10,585.50       
Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Calvin Giodorno 507.50            
Total Townwide Budget 3,675,754      363,231         9.9% Frank Schiola 25,000          4,074.46         16.3%

YEE's Corporation 10,800          2,700.00         25.0%
Loxahatchee Water Control District 150000 7,420.78         

Total Expenses 1,338,554       323,120.54      

(25% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of December 31 , 2012

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

AD VALOREM 
TAXESFPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX

STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX

PBC\OCC BUS TAX
GEN GOVT 
CHARGES

COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC 
FINES

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES

INTEREST

OTH MISC 
INCOME

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND

 -  200,000  400,000  600,000  800,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
FPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX
PBC\OCC BUS TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC FINES
PLAN ZON PERMIT…

INTEREST
OTH MISC INCOME

TRANS FR SANI FUND
TRANS FR FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue

Budget YTD

2012-12 FinActRep

Page 45 of 102

 
Page 45 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



25% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 105,598.31          117,728.69       -                      206,025.00            (88,296.31)               57.1%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 105,598.31        117,728.69     206,025.00          (88,296.31)             

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 16,697.59            58,050.58         -                      202,000.00            (143,949.42)              28.7%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 10,999.55            21,708.34         -                      136,726.00            (115,017.66)              15.9%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 94.43                   3,162.08           -                      5,000.00                (1,837.92)                 63.2%

Local Taxes Subtotal 27,791.57          82,921.00       -                     343,726.00          (260,805.00)            

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 16,841.87            36,528.41         -                      206,000.00            (169,471.59)              17.7%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       -                   -                      2,000.00                (2,000.00)                 0.0%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 943.31                 1,742.04           -                      10,500.00              (8,757.96)                 16.6%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 76.00                   76.00               -                      30,000.00              (29,924.00)               0.3%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 17,861.18          38,346.45       -                     248,500.00          (210,153.55)            

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,383.61              12,767.23         -                      77,873.00              (65,105.77)               16.4%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 16,783.61            33,045.90         -                      212,024.00            (178,978.10)              15.6%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 23,167.22          45,813.13       289,897.00          (244,083.87)            15.8%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 1,210.00              2,390.00           -                      5,000.00                (2,610.00)                 47.8%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 5,550.40              11,576.65         -                      20,000.00              (8,423.35)                 57.9%

Charges for Services Subtotal 6,760.40            13,966.65       -                     25,000.00            (11,033.35)             

001-351-100-000 Court Fines 85.75                 563.49           -                     -                       563.49                    
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       300.00             -                      5,000.00                (4,700.00)                 6.0%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal 85.75                 863.49           -                     5,000.00              (4,136.51)               

001-361-100-000 Interest 11.94                   37.07               -                      3,600.00                (3,562.93)                 #N/A
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       -                   -                      5,000.00                (5,000.00)                 0.0%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 11.94                 37.07             -                     8,600.00              (8,562.93)               

001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            (400,000.00)              0.0%
Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                 400,000.00          (400,000.00)            

Grand Total Revenue 181,276.37        299,676.48     -                     1,526,748.00       (1,227,071.52)         19.6%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 1 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 46 of 102

 
Page 46 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



25% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                   -                      20,000.00              20,000.00                 0.0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       92.00               -                      3,000.00                2,908.00                   3.1%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 1,084.00              1,084.00           -                      1,500.00                416.00                      72.3%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                   -                      1,000.00                1,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       -                   -                      300.00                   300.00                      0.0%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                   -                      300.00                   300.00                      0.0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       3,714.00           -                      7,785.00                4,071.00                   47.7%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 1,140.94              1,140.94           -                      5,350.00                4,209.06                   21.3%

Legislative Total 2,224.94            6,030.94         -                     39,235.00            33,204.06               15.4%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 20,885.20            63,620.84         -                      254,635.00            191,014.16               25.0%
001-512-400-000 Travel 98.61                   217.51             -                      1,000.00                782.49                      21.8%
001-512-410-000 Communication Services -                       476.26             -                      -                         (476.26)                    -
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 11.50                   59.20               -                      1,000.00                940.80                      5.9%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising 209.84                 209.84             -                      500.00                   290.16                      42.0%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 50.00                   60.00               -                      944.00                   884.00                      6.4%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense -                       -                   -                      8,010.00                8,010.00                   0.0%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 690.10                 1,430.50           -                      8,600.00                7,169.50                   16.6%
001-512-521-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT - MOVED -                       1,149.67           -                      -                         (1,149.67)                 -
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       -                   -                      570.00                   570.00                      0.0%

Executive Total 21,945.25          67,223.82       275,259.00          208,035.18             24.4%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       -                   -                      18,000.00              18,000.00                 0.0%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      4,750.00                4,750.00                   0.0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       910.00             -                      1,000.00                90.00                        91.0%
001-513-493-000 Election Expense (moved) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     910.00           23,750.00            22,840.00               3.8%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 7,887.35              26,084.60         -                      60,000.00              33,915.40                 43.5%
Legal Total 7,887.35            26,084.60       60,000.00            33,915.40               32.6%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 2 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 47 of 102

 
Page 47 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



25% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 6,757.50              25,061.36         -                      40,000.00              14,938.64                 62.7%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 2,315.00              2,315.00           -                      76,200.00              73,885.00                 3.0%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-515-347-000 Comprehensive Plan -                       -                   -                      5,000.00                5,000.00                   0.0%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 5,550.40              11,576.65         -                      25,000.00              13,423.35                 46.3%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW 982.08                 982.08             -                      2,500.00                1,517.92                   39.3%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 15,604.98          39,935.09       148,700.00          108,764.91             26.9%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate -                       1,755.00           -                      16,000.00              14,245.00                 11.0%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 2,214.50              5,553.50           -                      41,000.00              35,446.50                 13.6%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 453.37                 921.03             -                      5,100.00                4,178.97                   18.1%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,713.73              4,091.13           -                      16,305.00              12,213.87                 25.1%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       12,316.00         -                      16,500.00              4,184.00                   74.6%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 200.00                 600.00             -                      2,126.00                1,526.00                   28.2%
001-519-470-000 Printing and Binding 416.67                 887.85             -                      -                         (887.85)                    0.0%
001-519-480-000 Promotional Activities -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 370.75                 876.55             -                      4,500.00                3,623.45                   19.5%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services -                       -                   -                      11,131.00              11,131.00                 0.0%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                      5,280.00                5,280.00                   0.0%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       -                   -                      2,000.00                2,000.00                   0.0%
001-519-900-000 Transfer toTransportation Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-519-910-000 Transfer to Sanitation Fund -                       -                   -                      126,000.00            126,000.00               0.0%
001-519-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            400,000.00               0.0%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                      49,577.00              49,577.00                 0.0%

Other Governmental Services Total 5,369.02            27,001.06       695,519.00          668,517.94             3.9%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 22,898.75            68,696.25         -                      274,785.00            206,088.75               25.0%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%

Law Enforcement Total 22,898.75          68,696.25       275,285.00          206,588.75             25.0%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-539-340-000 Professional Services 171.96                 357.46             -                      9,000.00                8,642.54                   4.0%

Public Works Total 171.96               357.46           9,000.00              8,642.54                 4.0%

Grand Total Expenditure 76,102.25          236,239.22     -                     1,526,748.00       1,290,508.78          15.5%

Net Revenue 105,174.12        63,437.26       -                       

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

General Fund
Expenditures

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

UMSG,LLC
Page 3 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 48 of 102

 
Page 48 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



25% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax 20,023.87            39,653.64         -                      249,245.00            (209,591.36)              15.9%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax 9,489.98              18,612.73         -                      117,326.00            (98,713.27)               15.9%
101-363-990-000 Contribution from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Total Revenue 29,513.85          58,266.37       366,571.00          15.9%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                      9,245.00                9,245.00                   0.0%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 902.88                 10,192.68         -                      40,000.00              29,807.32                 25.5%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-631-000 Road and Streets (5 cent) -                       -                   -                      150,000.00            150,000.00               0.0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                      50,000.00              50,000.00                 0.0%
101-541-634-000 148th Terr Bridge (5)/Culvert -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-636-000 Construct Town Rds & Sts -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      117,326.00            117,326.00               0.0%

Total Expenditure 902.88               10,192.68       -                     366,571.00          2.8%

Net Revenue 28,610.97          48,073.69       -                       -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 4 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 49 of 102

 
Page 49 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



25% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            (400,000.00)              0.0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      912,466.00            (912,466.00)              0.0%

Total Revenue -                     -                 -                     1,312,466.00       (1,312,466.00)         0.0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-519-600-000 Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                       -                   -                      500,000.00            500,000.00               0.0%
305-541-341-000 Trails (changed from Linear Park/Grant Match) -                       -                   -                      200,000.00            200,000.00               0.0%
305-541-346-000 OGEM Paving/Cost Sharing -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
305-541-434-000 Road & Drainage Improvement -                       -                   -                      362,466.00            362,466.00               0.0%
305-541-436-000 Traffic Light Okeechobee -                       -                   -                      250,000.00            250,000.00               0.0%

Total Expenditure -                     -                 -                     1,312,466.00       1,312,466.00          0.0%

Net Revenue -                     -                 -                       -                         

Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

Capital Improvement Program

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

UMSG,LLC
Page 5 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 50 of 102

 
Page 50 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



25% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-323-125-000 Haulers Licensing Fee - MOVED TO GF -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 176,140.24          194,019.66       -                      346,361.00            (152,341.34)              56.0%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees (7,051.63)             (7,870.49)         -                      (10,392.00)             2,521.51                   75.7%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       3,652.09           -                      8,000.00                (4,347.91)                 45.7%
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      126,000.00            (126,000.00)              0.0%

Total Revenue 169,088.61        189,801.26     -                     469,969.00          (280,167.74)            40.4%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 795.00                 2,029.00           -                      12,000.00              9,971.00                   16.9%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 1,690.88              1,861.49           -                      3,463.00                1,601.51                   53.8%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 37,636.20            112,908.60       -                      451,634.00            338,725.40               25.0%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       -                   -                      1,500.00                1,500.00                   0.0%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      872.00                   872.00                      0.0%
405-534-595-000 TOLG Management Fee -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Total Expenditure 40,122.08          116,799.09     -                     469,969.00          353,169.91             24.9%

Net Revenue 128,966.53        73,002.17       -                       

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

UMSG,LLC
Page 6 of 6

Created: 1/23/2013

Page 51 of 102

 
Page 51 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

5.a.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 2012-12 – second reading 

Page 52 of 102

 
Page 52 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 53 of 102

 
Page 53 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 54 of 102

 
Page 54 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 55 of 102

 
Page 55 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 56 of 102

 
Page 56 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-12 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION FOR “RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND ARTICLE 20, 
ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, 
ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE 
SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 80 (CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE 
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; TO 
AMEND ARTICLE 80, ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO ADD A 
NEW SECTION 80-60, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES,” TO PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON 
RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES USES IN THE 
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, At the June 5, 2012 Town Council Meeting, the Town Council directed 

Town Management Staff and the Town Attorney to review the issue of retail hay sales and 

propose possible remedies that would address the issue; and 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning Staff has reviewed the issue and proposed amendments 

to the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) to regulate such activities as set forth 

herein; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board considered the proposed amendments 

to the Town’s ULDC at its November 8, 2012, meeting and pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, 

Florida Statutes, recommended that the Town Council approve the ordinance to amend the 

ULDC as set forth herein; and,  

Page 57 of 102

 
Page 57 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 WHEREAS, the Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves finds that the adoption 

of this ordinance is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, and in the best health and 

welfare interests of the Town, its property owners and residents.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 
  

Section 1:  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance.   

Section 2:  That the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby amends 

the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to: 

a.  Amend Article 10 entitled “Definitions, Abbreviations, And Construction Of 

Terms,” Section 10-015, entitled “Definitions” to add a new definition for 

“Residential Agricultural Sales And Services;”  

b. Amend Article 20, entitled “Residential Zoning Districts,” Section 20-015, entitled 

“Permitted Uses,” to add Residential Agricultural Sales and Services as an Accessory 

Use subject to Article 80 (Conditional Use) in the Agricultural Residential (AR) 

Zoning District;  

c. Amend Article 80, entitled “Conditional Uses,” to add a new Section 80-60, entitled 

“Residential Agricultural Sales And Services,” to provide conditions on Residential 

Agricultural Sales And Services Uses in the Agricultural Residential (AR) Zoning 

District. 

Page 58 of 102

 
Page 58 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Section 3:  Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict.   

Section 4:  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 5:  Codification.  The Town Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be codified as a 

part of the ULDC. 

Section 6:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 4th DAY OF  
DECEMBER, 2012. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2012.       
              
       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
       FLORIDA 
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Vice Mayor Jim Rockett   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
 

Page 59 of 102

 
Page 59 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
ATTACHMENT A  

RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES 
ULDC AMENDMENTS 
 (Ref: Following Page) 

 
 
 

Underlined text indicates additions to the current ULDC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60 of 102

 
Page 60 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



1.  ADD TO Section 10-015:  Definitions 
 
Residential Agricultural Sales and Services:  Places of business as an accessory use to the 
principal use of single-family engaged in the sale from the premises solely of straw, hay, flake 
shavings, pellet shavings, feed and grain for livestock and domesticated animals. 
 
2.  ADD TO Section 20-015: Permitted Uses (AR District)  
 
Plots located in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning districts may be used for the following 
specified uses. 
 

Accessory Uses* Agricultural Residential (AR) 
Accessory Dwelling Permitted  
Groom’s Quarter Permitted 
Caretaker’s Quarter Permitted 
Home Offices Permitted subject to Article 80 
Residential Enterprise Permitted subject to Article 80 
Wholesale Nursery Permitted 
Retail Nursery Permitted w/Special Exception 
U-Pick Farms Permitted w/Special Exception 
Private Kennels Permitted  
Private Stables Permitted  
Yard Sales Permitted subject to Article 80 
Residential Agricultural Sales and Services Permitted subject to Article 80 
 

*Accessory Use. Uses naturally and customarily incidental, subordinate, and subservient to the principal use 

of the premises, and located on the same plot as the principal use. The area of an accessory use shall be 

subordinate to that of the principal use.  

3.  ADD TO Article 80: Conditional Uses  
 
Section 80-60:  Residential Agricultural Sales and Services. 
 
Residential agricultural sales and services uses, as defined in Article 10, “Definitions, 
Abbreviations and Construction of Terms”, may occur as an accessory use to the principal use 
of single-family dwelling in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning district subject to the 
following conditions and limitations:  
 

(A) Owner of property and business.  The plot on which a residential agricultural sales 
and services use is located shall be occupied by the owner of said plot who shall 
also own and operate said residential agricultural sales and services use.  The 
owner of the plot shall provide to the Town proof of a homestead exemption as soon 
as possible, but no later than one year following the establishment of the residential 
agricultural sales and services use.  

 

Page 61 of 102

 
Page 61 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



(B) Change of ownership.  Any future change of ownership of the plot upon which a 
residential agricultural sales and services use is located or the  residential 
agricultural sales and services use shall invalidate an approval to operate under this 
Section.  

 
(C) Annual business tax receipt required.  Subject to review and written zoning 

confirmation by the Town, the owner of a residential agricultural sales and services 
use shall procure a Palm Beach County business tax receipt annually and provide a 
copy to the Town.  The Town shall use said receipts to establish and maintain a 
registry of residential agricultural sales and services businesses.   

 
(D) Size of property.   Residential agricultural sales and services uses shall be located 

on plots of five acres or more in size and comply with all lot frontage and setback 
requirements per Sections 20-25(B) and  20-035(A) to (D).  

 
(E) Location of residential agricultural sales and services use.  A residential agricultural 

sales and services use shall be conducted as an accessory use solely on the 
property where the main single-family dwelling is located.  

 
(F) Activities requiring special exception approval.  The following residential agricultural 

sales and services activities shall require a Special Exception pursuant to Article 
170.  

 
(1) The use of truck tractor(s) and semi-trailer(s) for residential agricultural sales 

and services product delivery to the plot. 
 
(2) The use of semi-trailers visible from the street or an adjoining residence  for  

residential agricultural sales and services products storage. 
 

(G) Number of accessory buildings.  There shall be a maximum of two accessory 
buildings used for a residential agricultural sales and services use. All accessory 
storage buildings for residential agricultural sales and service uses shall be 
enclosed or completely screened from view from adjacent properties. 

 
(H) Size of accessory buildings. The total floor area ratio (F.A.R.) of all accessory 

buildings used for a residential agricultural sales and services use shall not exceed 
0.01.  

 
(I) Use of shipping containers and semi-trailers.  Shipping containers and semi-trailers 

may be used to store residential agricultural sales and services products prior to 
their sale.   

Page 62 of 102

 
Page 62 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
(1) For the purposes of this section, shipping containers shall be considered 

accessory buildings. 
 
(2) A maximum of two semi-trailers may be used for outdoor storage of 

residential agricultural sales and services products on a plot of land without 
screening, subject to Section 80 – 60  (F), provided that such vehicles are 
routinely operated and maintained.   

 
(3) Shipping containers and semi-trailers shall not be located in any required 

setbacks, easements, or rights-of-way. 
 

(J) Employees or contractors.  In addition to any person(s) who are the resident owners 
of the property and the residential agricultural sales and services use, a maximum 
of two additional employees or contractors shall be permitted at any given time to 
assist with the residential agricultural sales and services use.  

 
(K) Outdoor storage.  Outdoor storage associated with residential agricultural sales and  

services uses  shall be subject to Section 20-010(G).  
 

(L) Signage.   One non-lit panel sign advertising the residential agricultural sales and 
services use and hours of operation may be erected on the plot.   Such signs shall 
be no larger than twelve square feet in sign area and no higher than eight feet 
above the ground.  Signs shall observe the site distance triangle requirement of 
Article 105, “Sight Distance” and  comply with all applicable codes, including 
permitting requirements.  

 
(M) Hours of operation. Hours of operation of a residential agricultural sales and 

services use shall be limited to 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. during week days and 8:00 
a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays.  No on-site sales shall occur on Sundays. 

 
 

(N) Residential agricultural Sales and Services Uses as of the effective date of this 
ordinance.  A residential agricultural sales and services use as an accessory use to 
the principal use of single-family dwelling in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning 
district that was operating consistent with Section 80-60 (A) as of the effective date 
of this ordinance, as verified by a valid business tax receipt, may continue its 
current operation with the following limitations: 
 

(1) Authorization pursuant to this paragraph  to operate a residential agricultural 
sales and services use shall not include the operation of such use as a 
principal use or an accessory use to any principal use other than single-
family dwelling. 

Page 63 of 102

 
Page 63 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
(2) Any future change in ownership of the plot upon which an agricultural sales 

and services business is located,  or the residential sales and services use 
shall invalidate an approval to operate under this paragraph.  

 
Exceptions to the foregoing limitations and conditions shall be subject to approval by the Town 
Council, and such requests shall be considered in conjunction with the criteria set forth in 
Section 170-025(A) for Special Exceptions.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 64 of 102

 
Page 64 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

6.a.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 2013-01 – first reading 

Page 65 of 102

 
Page 65 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

Revised January 31, 2013 

 
 
TO:                 Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:          Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:           January 10, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolution to authorize a Disbursement to Defray Costs Associated with the 

Official Duties of Town Council 
 
 
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
See attached memorandum from Mark A. Kutney to the Finance Advisory & Audit Committee 
(located within the FAAC Agenda attached). At the January 15, 2013 Town Council Meeting,  
Councilman Jarriel made a motion to approve compensation of $500.00 per month per council 
member, as recommended by the FAAC, with a re-evaluation taking place at the end of 12 
months . The motion was seconded by Council Member Liang. The motion passed on a 3/2 vote 
with Mayor Browning and Vice Mayor Rockett opposed.    
 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
See attached memorandum from Mark A. Kutney to the Finance Advisory & Audit Committee 
(located within the FAAC Agenda attached)  
 
 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 

 The Town Management Company provided 3 options to the FAAC.  Option 1 had a total annual 
expenditure of $30,919.25. Options 2 and 3 had an annual expenditure of $28,500.00. The FAAC 
is recommending Option 2 with a modification of a $500.00 monthly allotment and annual 
expenditure of $30,000.00. Vice Chair Elise Ryan will make a presentation to the Town Council. 

Page 66 of 102

 
Page 66 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 ATTACHMENTS 

Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Agenda Packet of January 9, 2013 

 

 
V. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Town Management Company recommends that Town Council adopt the FAAC 
recommendation to authorize a disbursement to defray costs associated with the official duties of 
the Town Council at a monthly allotment of $500.00 per Town Council Member and a yearly 
allotment of $6000.00 per Town Council Member for an annual expenditure of $30,000.  
 
 

Page 67 of 102

 
Page 67 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 
 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Meeting 

Wednesday, January 9, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
Palms West Chamber of Commerce, 13901 Southern Boulevard 

 
 
Chair Lung Chiu               Town Council Liaison Ryan Liang 
Vice Chair Elise Ryan            Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Committee Member Cheryl Miller                                                                    Town Clerk Susan Eichhorn 
Committee Member Virginia Standish 
Vacancy 

 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

b. Approval of Agenda 

 
2.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

a.  Discussion Relative to Town Council Compensation Options 
 

                    

3.    ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next FAAC meeting is Wednesday, January 27, 2013 
 
 

 
 

 Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

Page 68 of 102

 
Page 68 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 69 of 102

 
Page 69 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 70 of 102

 
Page 70 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

Municipality County Population Budget Wages
Belleair Pinellas 3,890              300                     
Biscayne Park Miami Dade 3,126              $3,270,000 2,000                  
Bowling Green Hardee 3,084              $2,500,000 1,800                  
Bunnell Flagler 2,600              9,600                  
Chiefland Levy 2,228              $6,000,000 4,800                  
Crystal River Citrus 3,737              $4,200,000 6,328                  
Dunnellon Marion 2,031              $3,100,000 1,800                  
Eagle Lake Polk 2,732              $1,500,000 1,272                  
Ocean Ridge Palm Beach 2,600              $5,100,000 1,200                  
Ponce Inlet Volusia 3,267              $4,700,000 8,395                  
Williston Levy 2,768              $2,400,000 3,000                  
Atlantis PBC 2,005              $4,000,000 12,800                
Loxahatchee Groves 3,100              $3,675,754
Haverhill PBC 1,894              $1,001,850 5,140                     
Highland Beach PBC 3,539              $10,500,000 14,400                
Hypoluxo PBC 2,636              $1,600,000
Juno Beach PBC 3,181              $6,300,000 3,488                  
Lake Clarke Shores PBC 3,376              $2,400,000 1,291                  
Mangonia Park PBC 2,315              $2,000,000 9,600                  
South Bay PBC 4,876              $2,200,000 15,334                   

Average 2,949              $3,691,534 $5,697
Note:  *  FY2011-2012 Budget

           *** Compensation + Allowances/Health Insurance
            ** FY2013 General Fund 

Florida and Palm Beach County Elected Official Compensation Benefits

Florida League of Cities Salary Survey

Page 71 of 102

 
Page 71 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



UMSG, LLC - Research   December 2012 ©

Belleair Biscayne
Park

Bowling
Green Bunnell Chiefland Crystal

River
Dunnello

n
Eagle
Lake

Ocean
Ridge

Ponce
Inlet Williston Atlantis

Loxahatc
hee

Groves
Haverhill Highland

Beach Hypoluxo Juno
Beach

Lake
Clarke
Shores

Mangoni
a Park

South
Bay

Annual Wage 300 2,000 1,800 9,600 4,800 6,328 1,800 1,272 1,200 8,395 3,000 12,800 5,140 14,400 3,488 1,291 9,600 15,334

Average Comp 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697

Budget 3,890 3,126 3,084 2,600 2,228 3,737 2,031 2,732 2,600 3,267 2,768 2,005 3,100 1,894 3,539 2,636 3,181 3,376 2,315 4,876

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

An
nu

al
 W

ag
e 

 

Annual Compensaton 

Average 
Budget 

Page 72 of 102

 
Page 72 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Title Option 1 - Wages
Option 2 - Auto & Comm 

Allowance*
Monthly Meeting 

Stipend#

Wage 5,700.00$               5,700.00$                              5,700.00$                  
FICA/Medicare Taxes 436.05$                  
Worker's Compensation 17.80$                     
Payroll Services Company 30.00$                     
Total Expense 6,183.85$               5,700.00$                              5,700.00$                  

Monthly Remittance 515.32$                  475.00$                                 475.00$                     

Annual Expenditure 30,919.25$             28,500.00$                           28,500.00$               

* Individual Council member can reduce withholding liability by tracking, recording, and deducting actual mileage 
# Individual Council member can not reduce withholding liability

Annual Compensation Options per Council Member
Municipal Small City Compensation Average

Page 73 of 102

 
Page 73 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-01 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 
COMPENSATION FOR COUNCILMEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS,  SEVERABILITY,  AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 3(4)(e)2 of the Town Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

authorizes the Town Council, by not fewer than four (4) votes, to adopt an ordinance to establish or 

increase compensation; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town’s Finance and audit Advisory Committee (FAAC) reviewed the 

matter at its January 9, 2013, meeting, and recommended a monthly stipend of $500.00, equal to 

$6,000.00 per year; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its January 15, 2013, meeting, the Town Council directed the Town 

Attorney to prepare an ordinance for consideration consistent with the recommendations of the 

FAAC; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves finds that it is in the 

best interest of the Town to establish compensation for the members of the Town Council, effective 

following the March, 2013, municipal election in the Town, pursuant to the Town Charter.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2. The Town Council hereby establishes compensation for the members of the 

Page 74 of 102

 
Page 74 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Town Council as follows: 

  $500.00 per month, per Councilmember, beginning April 1, 2013. 

Section 3. It is the intention of the Town Council, and it is hereby ordained that the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Town’s Code of Ordinances 

upon the codification of the Town’s ordinances.  

Section 4. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. If any Section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall become effective following the March 12, 2013 

municipal election, as provided in the Town Charter. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ____ DAY OF 
___________________, 2013. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ___________________, 2013. 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
 FLORIDA 

    
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Councilmember David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Vice Mayor Jim Rockett   
    

Page 75 of 102

 
Page 75 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
 
 
        
H:\_GOV CLIENTS\LOX 1574\_070240 GM\ORD 2013\2013-  (Council Compensation).doc 
 

Page 76 of 102

 
Page 76 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

10.b.  Manure Ordinance 

Page 77 of 102

 
Page 77 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 78 of 102

 
Page 78 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 79 of 102

 
Page 79 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 80 of 102

 
Page 80 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 81 of 102

 
Page 81 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 82 of 102

 
Page 82 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 83 of 102

 
Page 83 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 84 of 102

 
Page 84 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



 

 

 

10.c.  Town Council Interest in Purchasing Property 

Page 85 of 102

 
Page 85 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:                 Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:          Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:           January 31, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:    Lee Wright Property – 727 E Road  
 
 
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
At the Town Council Meeting of January 15, 2013, The Town Manager advised Town Council 
of an offer by Mr. Lee Wright to sell the Town (if the Town is interested) his property at 727 E 
Road ( copy of Mr. Wright’s letter attached). During the discussion, the Town Manager advised 
that he was informing the Town Council of the offer and would be scheduling the matter for a 
future agenda to determine if Town Council had any interest in pursuing the due diligence of a 
possible purchase.  
 
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
Town Management Staff performed some limited analysis of property in the Town by reviewing 
Palm Beach County Property Appraiser market value and the most recent sales price. Nine 
properties in addition to the property in question were queried (please see the attached chart 
along with the property maps of each parcel). The average market value of the other nine (9) 
properties is $236,082 and the average sale price available for six (6) of the properties that were 
sold during the time frame of 1986 thru 2012 is $455,500.    
 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 

To be determined dependent upon Town Council interest and particulars of any sales agreement 
and it’s structure. 

 

Page 86 of 102

 
Page 86 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



IV. ATTACHMENTS 

December 21, 2012 Letter from Lee Wright 

Chart of real property market value and property aerial maps 

 

 

 
 

V. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Town Manager recommends that the Town Council can consider two options. Option One 
(1) is direct Staff to move forward with continued due diligence regarding a possible purchase or 
Option (2) do nothing at this time. 
 
 

Page 87 of 102

 
Page 87 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 88 of 102

 
Page 88 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Study Site 

 

235 “E” Road – Contiguous Property 

 

Page 89 of 102

 
Page 89 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



1125 “E” Road 

 

“C” Road 

 

Page 90 of 102

 
Page 90 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



2761 “E” Road 

 

1222 “E” Road 

 

Page 91 of 102

 
Page 91 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



530 “C” Road 

 

14217 Collecting Canal Road 

 

Page 92 of 102

 
Page 92 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



570 “C” Road 

 

550 “C” Road 

 

Page 93 of 102

 
Page 93 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 94 of 102

 
Page 94 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 95 of 102

 
Page 95 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 96 of 102

 
Page 96 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 97 of 102

 
Page 97 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 98 of 102

 
Page 98 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 99 of 102

 
Page 99 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 100 of 102

 
Page 100 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Page 101 of 102

 
Page 101 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013



Property Address Acres PAPA Market Value Price/Acre Most Recent Sale Price Price/Acre at Time of Sale Visual
727 "E" Road 15.3 $236,288 $15,447 $300,00 in 4/2002 $19,607 Map
235 "E" Road 20 $216,450 $10,822 $550,000 in 2/2012 $27,500 Map

1125 "E" Road 15 $247,298 $16,486 N/A Map
"C" Road 20 $308,874 $15,443 N/A Map

2761 "E" Road 20 $314,055 $15,702 $150,000 in 12/1986 $7,500 Map
1222 "E" Road 20 $313,844 $15,692 $350,000 in 3/1996 $17,500 Map
530 "C" Road 17.58 $271,500 $15,444 $200,000 in 12/2009 $11,376 Map

14217 Collecting Canal Road 5 $90,845 $18,169 N/A Map
570 "C" Road 11.95 $195,408 $16,352 $455,500 $38,117 Map
550 "C" Road 10.18 $166,465 $16,352 $690,000 in 5/2007 $67,780 Map

Averages: $236,082 $15,607 $455,500 $28,296
Study site

Contiguous property to south

Page 102 of 102

 
Page 102 of 102   Agenda Packet 2-5-2013

http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414332040000030
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414332040000040
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414317014490010
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414317012420010
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414317014370010
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414317015040010
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414332050000010
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414317014010040
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414332050000030
http://www.co.palm-beach.fl.us/papa/Asps/papagis/papagis.aspx?qvalue=41414332050000020

	2.a. Invoices From Cirullo
	2.b. Minutes
	2.c. Election Agreement
	3.a. Drowning Coalition Information
	4.a. FAAC Report
	5.a. Ordinance No. 2012-12
	6.a. Ordinance No. 2013-01
	10.b. Manure Ordinance
	10.c. Property



